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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Good

          3  afternoon, everybody. Welcome to the Subcommittee on

          4  Planning, Dispositions, and Concessions.  Today's

          5  date is September 19th, 2006.  The counsel of this

          6  committee has never lead me astray before, the first

          7  time ever, September 19th is today's date by a

          8  unanimous vote, it is the 19th of September.

          9                 We have a few items on the agenda

         10  today.

         11                 I would like to note that we are

         12  joined today by my colleagues, Council Member Yvette

         13  Clarke, Council Member Andrew Lanza, Council Member

         14  Inez Dickens, welcome back, glad you are feeling

         15  okay, and we are going to move right into it.

         16                 First item that we are going to be

         17  considering, and I would like Carol Clark of HPD to

         18  join us at the witness table, Land Use Number 166,

         19  Non- ULURP Number 20065461 HAX, which is a few

         20  addresses in a project that was previously approved

         21  by the city council.

         22                 Ms. Clark, why do not you explain to

         23  us exactly what is going on here?

         24                 It is a New Foundations Program,

         25  several addresses in the Bronx, in the district of
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          2  Maria del Carmen Arroyo.

          3                 MS. CLARK:  Thank you council member.

          4                 This project is known as the

          5  Mockhaven, sites five and six, and as you mentioned,

          6  it is a proposed amendment of a project previously

          7  approved.

          8                 Now, HPD is seeking the approval of

          9  the addition of two privately owned tax lots, which

         10  the sponsor of the project is seeking to acquire.

         11  So, if this acquisition occurs and the action here

         12  today by the council is favorable, there will be

         13  four two family homes constructed by the developer

         14  on what is currently privately owned tax lots.

         15                 Council Member Arroyo has reviewed

         16  the project, and has recommended approval of the

         17  amended project, contingent upon the acquisition of

         18  these privately owned parcels.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         20                 So, it is an amendment to a project

         21  that was previously approved, yes?

         22                 MS. CLARK:  That is correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  The two lots

         24  that are expected to be acquired by the project

         25  sponsored are Block 2653, Lots 39 and 44, is that
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          2  correct?

          3                 MS. CLARK:  That is correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And which

          5  addresses do those correspond with in our calendar

          6  today?

          7                 MS. CLARK:  790 East 151st Street,

          8  and 597- 599 Tinton Avenue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         10  the sponsor is not going to be able to acquire these

         11  additional lots prior to the expiration the 150 day

         12  approval period, which ends on September 28th, 2006,

         13  is that right?

         14                 MS. CLARK:  That is right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And your

         16  request here is that the Council provide for a

         17  contingent approval here with respect to those two

         18  properties, the ones' that you just cited, lots 39

         19  and 44 in Block 2653, contingent on the sponsor

         20  actually acquiring those additional properties, is

         21  that right?

         22                 MS. CLARK:  Exactly.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thank

         24  you and you previously stated that Council Member

         25  Maria del Carmen Arroyo supports this plan?
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          2                 MS. CLARK:  That is right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, are

          4  there other questions?

          5                 Seeing no members of the public

          6  wishing to testify on the matter, I am going to

          7  close the hearing on Land Use 166, and open the

          8  hearing on Land Use 245, Non- ULURP 20075032 HAK,

          9  one property at 551 DeKalb in Brooklyn.  This is in

         10  the district of Council Member Vann.

         11                 Ms. Clark.

         12                 MS. CLARK:  Yes, this property at 551

         13  DeKalb is an eight unit, city- owned building to be

         14  disposed of through HPD's Tenant Interim Lease

         15  Program, and as you know, this program takes

         16  occupied, city- owned residential buildings which

         17  are rehabilitated and converted into low- income

         18  tenant co- ops.  Six of the units in this building

         19  are occupied, and the tenants are prepared for

         20  building ownership responsibility.

         21                 Council Member Vann has reviewed the

         22  project, and he has recommended approval.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         24                 Are there questions on this

         25  application?
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          2                 Seeing none, close the hearing on

          3  Land Use 245, Non- ULURP Number 20075032 HAK, and

          4  open the hearing on Land Use Number 247, Non- ULURP

          5  Number 20075034 HAK, property at 609 Osborn Street

          6  in Brooklyn in the district of Council Member

          7  Charles Barron.

          8                 Ms. Clark.

          9                 MS. CLARK:  Correct, the property at

         10  609 Osborn Street consists of the rehabilitation of

         11  one, vacant city- owned building under the Homeless

         12  Housing Assistance Program, known as HHAP.  This

         13  program has non- for- profit sponsors which are

         14  selected by the New York State Office of Temporary

         15  and Disability Assistance to purchase and rehab

         16  vacant city- owned residential buildings.  The

         17  sponsor of this project is Wayside Outreach

         18  Development, Incorporated, who's parent organization

         19  is the Wayside Baptist Church.

         20                 Upon completion, the project will

         21  provide 19 units of rental housing for formerly

         22  homeless families, plus one unit for a

         23  superintendent.

         24                 Council Member Barron has reviewed

         25  the project, and has indicated his support.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And you said

          3  that this building is presently vacant?

          4                 MS. CLARK:  That is correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  How are the

          6  families identified who might be able to fill those

          7  19 units?

          8                 MS. CLARK:  The sponsor, Wayside

          9  Outreach Development, works with the New York State

         10  Office of Temporary and Disability Assistance to

         11  select the appropriate candidates.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  How is

         13  Wayside selected?

         14                 MS. CLARK:  They are the affiliate

         15  with the Wayside Baptist Church that proposed the

         16  project, and went to the state and obtained their

         17  recognition through the OTDA Program.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Any

         19  questions?

         20                 Seeing none, we will close the

         21  hearing on Land Use 247, Non- ULURP 20075034 HAK,

         22  and open the hearing on Land Use Number 248, Non-

         23  ULURP 20075043 HAX, at 798 and 800 East 165th Street

         24  in the Bronx, in the district of Council Member

         25  Helen Diane Foster.
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          2                 Ms. Clark.

          3                 MS. CLARK:  Right, these properties

          4  consist of the substantial rehab of two vacant

          5  properties under HPD's Homeworks Program, in

          6  conjunction with HUD's 203K Loan Program, and as you

          7  will recall, the Department of Housing and Urban

          8  Development of the United States, and HPD have

          9  undertaken an initiative in which residential

         10  buildings that were acquired by HUD through a

         11  mortgage foreclosure of the Federally Insured

         12  Section 203K Loan Program, are actually sold to

         13  private entities and developed within the parameters

         14  of the City's housing programs.

         15                 When the foreclosures were about to

         16  take place, this was in January of 2002, the City

         17  stepped in to negotiate with HUD to ensure that

         18  these projects would yield affordable housing,

         19  rather than market- rate housing.  A MOU was signed,

         20  a Memorandum of Understanding, in which HUD

         21  committed a significant amount of resources to the

         22  rehabilitation of these buildings, and in exchange,

         23  the City committed to seek tax exemption for these

         24  projects that are before you today.

         25                 This is the first of several that you
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          2  will be seeing this fall.  When completed, it is a

          3  rehabilitation of two, three- family homes.

          4                 Council Member Foster has reviewed

          5  the project and indicated her support.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And since

          7  this is the first of a number of HUD 203K

          8  applications, let me just make sure I understand.

          9                 These are properties which were

         10  foreclosed upon by the Federal Department of Housing

         11  Urban Development, and now they are working in

         12  cooperation with the City of New York for

         13  rehabilitation for renovation of these properties

         14  through the City's and HPD's various programs, is

         15  that correct?

         16                 MS. CLARK:  Exactly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  How many

         18  properties were there that fell into this category

         19  that we are now partnering with the federal

         20  government on?

         21                 MS. CLARK:  Initially, there were a

         22  little over 500 back in 2002.  Some of them have

         23  actually not been conveyed, so there are

         24  approximately 440 right now in the program.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And do you
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          2  expect to put all 440 through the various HPD

          3  programs for rehabilitation?

          4                 MS. CLARK:  Indeed, we do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Are they all

          6  going to come through the Homeworks Program, or are

          7  they going to come through other HPD programs?

          8                 MS. CLARK:  No, the City is utilizing

          9  several different programs, the Neighborhood

         10  Entrepreneur's Program, the Neighborhood

         11  Redevelopment Program, Neighborhood Homes, and the

         12  Homeworks and Storeworks Program.

         13                 It is the later two, Homeworks and

         14  Storeworks, that are the group that you will be

         15  seeing this fall.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  You said the

         17  HUD put forth several- that HUD put forward

         18  resources to be able to make this happen.

         19                 Can you enlighten us as to what sort

         20  of investment the federal government made in this?

         21                 MS. CLARK:  Sure, HUD granted

         22  approximately $130 million when the MOU was signed

         23  in January of 2002, and in exchange, HPD's

         24  contribution to the program is to seek approximately

         25  $95 million in tax exemptions and abatements which
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          2  allow these properties to remain affordable, using

          3  again, HPD programs.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So HUD

          5  invested $130 million after an MOU that was signed

          6  between the City and the federal government in 2002?

          7                 MS. CLARK:  Correct, January.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  In exchange,

          9  the City pledged to allow for $95 million in tax

         10  exemptions in order to make this all a possibility?

         11                 MS. CLARK:  That is correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, we have

         13  questions from Council Member Dickens.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

         15  much Chair Garodnick, and it is certainly good to be

         16  back after having surgery on both my feet, rendering

         17  it impossible for me to attend my committee

         18  meetings.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  It is good to

         20  have you back.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  I am glad

         22  that I am able to be here, and be involved once

         23  again.  I am glad to see that I returned just in the

         24  nick of time for these 203K's because a lot of them

         25  are in my district, and although I know that there
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          2  is only a few on today that are not in my district,

          3  I will take the lead from my colleagues on the

          4  properties disposition in their districts.

          5                 However Deputy Commissioner Clark, I

          6  do have a question or two.

          7                 This particular program is for the

          8  smaller 203K's that would be eligible for the HPD's

          9  Home and/or Storeworks Programs, which affects more

         10  than 500 properties citywide of which HUD, due to

         11  their fallacies, are now foreclosing on.

         12                 I wish to thank my colleagues and HPD

         13  for trying to stop such massive and unfair actions

         14  from occurring by negotiating with HUD to provide

         15  these mortgage monies.  But, I would be interested

         16  in a couple of things.

         17                 One, the mortgage structure such as

         18  interest rate and mortgage terms from HUD, and two,

         19  from HPD who the developers are and how it is

         20  determined in the districts, that is the second

         21  thing, because I would like to see how that outreach

         22  is done by HPD to the individual developers to

         23  ensure that local developers are utilized wherever

         24  possible, that is the one thing.

         25                 The mortgage structure is important
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          2  because, and although this program will be providing

          3  the UDAAP tax exemption status to the properties,

          4  which will provide affordable home ownership, which

          5  is the crux of survivorship in any community, my

          6  concern now are the rental units that become

          7  available, both as apartments and stores because

          8  they could be effectively removed from their

          9  affordable market and put into market rate.

         10                 So, I do have some concerns about

         11  that, although home ownership is very, very

         12  important, I am concerned that the mortgage is able

         13  to be paid back, but I also have concern about the

         14  rental units and that they remain affordable so that

         15  the people, the indigenous populations that are

         16  presently in the communities can, indeed, afford to

         17  remain there, and I do not know if HPD can do

         18  anything because of that tax exemption but maybe,

         19  and I know it is not probably in the Memorandum of

         20  Understanding, but maybe something could be looked

         21  into to modify that MOU that could be put into the

         22  mortgage structure that would allow for some

         23  guidelines on the rents for those apartments that

         24  will serve as rental units for the community.

         25                 So, I am sorry that I brought this up
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          2  but I mean, this is very important to me.

          3                 MS. CLARK:  I am so happy to respond,

          4  Council Member Dickens.  It is great to see you

          5  back.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you.

          7                 MS. CLARK:  HPD appreciates your

          8  question because, as you said, many of these

          9  properties are located in Central Harlem, also

         10  central Brooklyn, that is the areas that have the

         11  predominant number of the over 500 203K parcels, and

         12  indeed, we do select local developers with

         13  experience and we look through our most experienced

         14  developers in these programs who have worked

         15  with elected officials, and the local community, in

         16  order the make sure that we are picking developers

         17  that will go forward and be successful at this

         18  particular time.

         19                 Many of these are distressed and

         20  dilapidated buildings that are in real trouble, and

         21  it is important that this program is successful.

         22                 So, we look to veteran developers

         23  with strong community ties, and we have a meeting

         24  set up with you, I believe, for early next week in

         25  order to go over the specific developers, and the
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          2  details of the projects that are located in your

          3  district.

          4                 We will go through all of that at

          5  that time, but I think the question you raised that

          6  was a very good one, was can the City set a maximum

          7  rent limit for the rentals of the apartments and the

          8  stores?

          9                 You are applauding the homeownership

         10  aspect of the program, but wondering is there a

         11  mechanism that might be able to be devised to

         12  address the situations with rentals, and as you

         13  know, the Homeworks Program and the Storeworks

         14  Program are designed to deal with rentals at market

         15  rates.

         16                 So, we will have to do some homework

         17  here, and  I am certainly going to take it back to

         18  the agency, and explore what latitude we may have

         19  within the program that is before us to see what we

         20  can do to respond to what was a very good question.I

         21  appreciate it, and I will take it back and have some

         22  information for you on Monday when we meet.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

         24  much, Commissioner, because I realize that this

         25  conveyance, this type of conveyance, has not been
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          2  done before, but I am also concerned because in this

          3  Body we oftentimes are the only body that is able to

          4  protect affordability, and in this type of

          5  conveyance it is being removed from us.

          6                 I have a little concern about that,

          7  and I just wanted it on the record for that.  I

          8  apologize for the time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Do not

         10  apologize at all. I think you make an excellent

         11  point, and I am glad to see that HPD will take that

         12  back, whether these restrictions would need to be in

         13  an amendment to a Memorandum of Understanding, or

         14  whether there is other ways to possibly achieve

         15  that.

         16                 I think that is something certainly

         17  worth exploring, and it is yet another reason why we

         18  are so glad you are back with us, Council Member

         19  Dickens.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  I do not

         21  know, is HPD glad I am back?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  They are glad

         23  you are back too.

         24                 MS. CLARK:  We are very glad you are

         25  back.  We are happy to see you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Are there

          3  other questions?

          4                 Seeing none, we are going to close

          5  the hearing, and by the way, before I do, you

          6  indicated that Council Member Foster supports this

          7  application.  Is that right?

          8                 MS. CLARK:  That is correct, and

          9  there is another property I believe, that is L.U.

         10  259 that is Council Member Fidler's district.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Yes, we are

         12  going to get to that one right next.

         13                 MS. CLARK:  Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So, but

         15  Council Member Foster you said was in support of

         16  Land Use 248?

         17                 MS. CLARK:  Absolutely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 We are going to close the hearing on

         21  Land Use 248, Non- ULURP 20075043 HAX, and open the

         22  hearing on Land Use 259, you almost beat me to it,

         23  Non- ULURP Number 20075054 HAK, address 1235 East

         24  87th Street in Brooklyn, another HUD 203K.  This is

         25  in the district of Council Member Lew Fidler.
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          2                 Ms. Clark.

          3                 MS. CLARK:  Thank you.

          4                 Yes, this consists of the substantial

          5  rehabilitation of one building at 1235 East 87th

          6  Street, with two units of housing, as you mentioned,

          7  it is part of this 203K initiative, and it will be

          8  conveyed to the sponsor who will sell it- the

          9  completed project, to a purchaser for owner

         10  occupancy. Council Member Fidler has reviewed the

         11  project and has indicated his support.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 Seeing no members of the public or

         15  others wishing to testify or comment on Land Use

         16  Number 259, Non- ULURP 20075054 HAK, we will close

         17  the hearing on that one, and go to our last two

         18  items of the day, Land Use 153, the Vernon

         19  Condominiums, and this is for the facilitation of

         20  the development of two, four story buildings in the

         21  district of Council Member Al Vann.  This is C

         22  060343 HAK in Brooklyn Community Board 3.

         23                 Go right ahead Ms. Clark.

         24                 MS. CLARK:  Right, this project L.U.

         25  153, known as Vernon Condominiums, consists of the
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          2  proposed disposition of four, vacant city owned lots

          3  for the construction of two, four story buildings,

          4  which when completed will provide 15 condominium

          5  units for sale to low- and- moderate- income

          6  purchasers, plus one unit for the superintendent.

          7                 The projects' sponsor is the

          8  Northeast Brooklyn Housing Development Corporation,

          9  and in addition, the sponsor proposes to create

         10  4,000 square feet of open space in the rear of the

         11  parcel, as well as a common storage room and laundry

         12  area.

         13                 Council Member Vann has reviewed the

         14  project, and indicated his approval.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Let me ask

         16  you a question about the sale of these buildings and

         17  the development of- for this disposition of these

         18  buildings and the sale of condo units at affordable

         19  rates.

         20                 What happens when the purchaser of

         21  those condominiums decides that they want to sell

         22  their condominium?

         23                 What are the restrictions or

         24  limitations on those, if there are any?

         25                 MS. CLARK:  In the regulatory
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          2  agreement which governs this transaction, and once

          3  there is a real estate closing, there is a period of

          4  time during which they are restricted on the resale,

          5  but I would have to check on that specific one.  I

          6  do not have it in front of me.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So, they are

          8  restricted in terms of to whom they can sell, and

          9  that that somebody needs to have a certain income

         10  limitation, is that what it is?

         11                 MS. CLARK:  Yes, to keep the

         12  affordability in there, there is a certain income

         13  range, so the goal is to keep the affordability and

         14  that is what the restriction pertains to, for a

         15  period of time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  And that

         17  period of time, you may not know it offhand, but it

         18  is not into perpetuity?

         19                 MS. CLARK:  It is not usually into

         20  perpetuity, no.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Are we

         22  usually talking about somewhere less than ten years,

         23  or more than ten years?

         24                 MS. CLARK:  It depends on the

         25  program.  I am aware of some that are as short as
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          2  six years, others that are longer.

          3                 It does vary in terms of each

          4  program, but we could get back to you with specifics

          5  on that if you would like.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Yes please, I

          7  am actually curious.

          8                 Other questions on this one?

          9                 With Council Member Vann's support,

         10  as you had indicated, we will close the hearing on

         11  Land Use 153, the Vernon Condominiums, C 060343 HAK,

         12  and open the hearing on our last item of the day,

         13  Land Use 228, the Himrod Street Apartments, Brooklyn

         14  Community Board 4, C 060515 HAK in the district of

         15  Council Member Erik Martin Dilan.

         16                 Ms. Clark.

         17                 MS. CLARK:  Right, this project,

         18  known as the Himrod Street Apartments consists of

         19  the proposed disposition of seven vacant city- owned

         20  lots for development, under the New York State

         21  Housing Trust Fund Program.

         22                 The sponsor will construct a new six-

         23  story building, which when completed will provide 33

         24  units of rental housing for low- income and formally

         25  homeless families, plus one superintendents unit.
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          2  The sponsors parent organization is the Ridgewood

          3  Bushwick Senior Citizens Council.

          4                 Council Member Dilan has reviewed the

          5  project, and has given it his support.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  These would

          7  be rental units?

          8                 MS. CLARK:  Yes, these are going to

          9  be rental units, rental housing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  You said that

         11  it was 33 residential units?

         12                 MS. CLARK:  That is right, and one

         13  for the super.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Oh I see,

         15  okay, thank you.

         16                 Okay thank you, and Council Member

         17  Dilan has weighed in on the subject?

         18                 MS. CLARK:  He has indeed, and he

         19  recommended approval.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Seeing no

         21  members of the public wishing to testify on this

         22  subject, I will close the hearing on Land Use 228,

         23  the Himrod Street Apartments, C 060515 HAK, and we

         24  are going to lay over all other items on the

         25  calendar at the request of the specific members in
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          2  whose district that property sits.

          3                 We are going to couple the rest of

          4  them that we just heard today together, and to

          5  couple them together for a vote, and the Chair

          6  recommends an aye vote on all.

          7                 Counsel will please call the roll.

          8                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chair

          9  Garodnick.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Aye on all.

         11                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         12  Member Clarke.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Aye on all.

         14                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         15  Member Dickens.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Aye on all.

         17                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         18  Member Lanza.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Aye on all.

         20                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  By a vote

         21  of four in the affirmative, none in the negative,

         22  and no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

         23  approved and referred to the Full Committee.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         25  very much and thank you to my colleagues, and the
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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  representatives of HPD.

          3                 (Hearing concluded at 1:54 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 19th day of September 2006.
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          EMILY GRAVES
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          9            I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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